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Camden City Public School District, 201 N. Front Street, Camden, New Jersey 08102 « 856-966-2000

REUBENF, MILLS
INTERIM
SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Joun C. OBERG
INTERIM SCHOOL BUSINESS
ADMBVISTRATOR/
BOARD SECRETARY
TELE: 856 966-2036
FaX: 856966-2430

March 7, 2013

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Camden School District

County of Camden, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Camden School District for the
year ended June 30, 2012, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of
the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests
with the management of the Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and
belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported
in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of
the various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain
an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory,
financial, statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal
letter, the District's organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial
section includes the basic financial statements and schedules, management’s discussion
and analysis as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the
provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133 Revised, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations" and the State OMB Circular 04-04, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients
of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid." Information related to this single audit,
including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the
single audit section of this report.

1, REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The City of Camden School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria
adopted by the GASB as established by NCGA Statement No. 3. All funds of the
District are included in this report. The City of Camden Board of Education and all its
schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-
school through Grade 12. These include regular, vocational as well as special education
for handicapped students. The District completed the 2011-2012 year with an average
daily enrollment of 12,521 smdents, which is 0.10% students above the previous year's
average daily enrollment. The following details the changes in the student enrollment of
the District over the last five years.
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Average Daily Enrollment
Average Daily

Student Percent

Year Enrollment Change
2011-12 12620 0.10%
2010-11 12507 -2.76%
2009-10 12862 2.68%
2008-09 12526 -3.40%
2007-08 12967 -13.35%

2. VISION STATEMENT:

Camden City Public Schools maintains that academic success and student achievement through rigorous teaching and
learning, and a safe environment is the district’s primary focus. Aligning district curriculum with the New Jersey Core
Curricelum Content Standards promotes accountability and high expectations of studenis and staff. Creating school
communities, which promote a sense of caring and respect for culture enables all students to achieve academic success.
Engaging students, parents and the community, as partners will further develop positive responsibilities and relationships
that empower students to compete in a diverse and rapidly changing society. We will build on student’s natural curiosity to
be part of the digital divide by exposing them to the ever changing technological universe.

3. PHILOSOPHY OF EDUCATION:

We believe that high expectations and standards of excellence for students, principals, staff and parents will result in an
increased system of accountability and academic achievement for all students. To fulfill this philosophy, we will develop a
seamless, inclusive system preparing all students to meet world class academic standards, Upon graduating, all students
will nmeet rigorous post secondary educational and private sector employment requirements. Therefore, we conclude that
our responsibility is to develop the whole child toward his/her full potential to become a citizen capable of participating
wisely and justly within the framework of a democratic culture,

4. STRATEGIC GOALS:

e Construct a comprehensive, unified curriculum that will prepare all of our students to be competitive in the
global community.

o FEapect all teachers, principals and school staff to deliver a high quality instructional program.
o Develop a strong system of accountability throughout all aspects of the school district.
e  (Organize the District to better serve the needs of students, parents and the community.

e Engage parents and the broader community in meaningtul support of academic achievement.

5. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

Camden City, the second largest municipality in the Philadelphia Metropolitan Statistical Avea, is located in the
southwestern section of New Jersey. Camden is the seventh largest city in the state and the largest city in Camden County.
The City is divided into 20 census tracts, all of which vary in character and condition.

Despite Camden's socio-economic decline, the City's strategic location ofters hope that this trend may be reversed. Located
directly across the Delaware River from Philadelphia, Camden has easy access to many different forms of transportation.
First of all, Rt. 676, 1295, US 30, US 130 and other major roadways all service the City. Moreover, not only is the
Philadelphia International Airport only 20 minutes away, but, also, Camden has access to the international market through




the City's ports, which rank among the nation's leaders in the shipment of buik cargo. Finally, Conrail service from Pavonia
Yards links the City with the rest of the Northeast Corridor.

Camden, New Jersey comprises some 9 square miles in Southern New Jersey, Camden is less than one mite from downtown
Philadelphia, Pennsyivania, 2 1/2 hours driving time from Washington, D.C., 90 miles from New York City and about 52
miles from Atlantic City, New Jersey.

Some 77,500 people live in the City of Camden. The multi-cultural composition of Camden's population makes it a true
urban center. The Camden City Public Schools student population is as diverse as the people who reside in Camden. Today,
our Pre-K-12 school district numbers approximately 12,600 students atiending 19 elementary/ family schools, two middie
schools, two traditional high schools, two magnet high schools and one nontraditional high school.

The district’s school racial composition is as follows: African-American 49.8%, Hispanics 48.5%, White .0.5%, Asian
1.0%. The City’s population of approximately 77,500 has many unique characteristics, Many languages are spoken in
Camden schools, including Spanish, Vietnamese, Cambodian, Creole and, of course, English, Finally, nearly a third of
Camden families have an income below the Federal poverty line.

Camden, like many American urban areas, has traditionally been plagued by numerous problems associated with urban
blight. In order to effectively deal with these obstacles, the city must look to social, economic, physical and cultural sectors
to sufficiently stabilize the community and to improve the quality of life for cify residents.

6. MAJOR INITIATIVES:

The Comprehensive Unified Literacy Curriculum was updated for all K-5 grade teachers, principals, vice principals and
literacy coaches. The district utilizes Harcourt “Storytown” in all classes for grades kindergarten through fifth.

Developmental Reading Assessment is administered three times per year and is used to help teachers make instructional
decisions about their students.

Distance learning at the elementary level was provided by tele-conferencing to provide our students with communication
and presentations skills and participation in experiences that would not readily be available through normal school activities.
Some elementary schools received large white boards and smart boards. The district has subscribed with United Streaming
for 25,000 video clips on cross content subjects.

The 100 Book Challenge Reading Program, a supplemental reading intervention program, is continuing to be implemented
in all elementary and family schools. Job embedded professional development is being continued on reading instruction
through the partnership with the American Reading Company. This intervention program is designed to motivate and
encourage students to engage in sustained, uninterrupted and independent reading during the school day.

All elementary and family schools are using Read 180 in at least one of then fifth and/or sixth grade classrooms.
Professional development and classroom support in being continued. Students are monitored every eight weeks and
teachers ave able to use the data to modify their instruction.

All K-3 classrooms are in the process of implementing EnVision Math 2009. EnVision Math is a program that meets the
varied needs of students and teachers. This program focuses on conceptual understanding, problem solving and program
organization. Teachers receive professional development and on-site support through publisher representatives, math
coaches and webinar trainings. Student progress is monitored through quarterly topic assessments.

Two RTI programs that support math learning and skill development have been expanded this year. The first program is
First In Math and it has been expanded to include grades 3-8. First In Math is an online program that supports the 24®
GAME—a classroom staple since 1988. Online games range from Addition to multi-step Algebra, and are organized into
SKILL SETS. Each skili set is comprised of three sequential 24 Games, labeled 1, 2 and 3. Each game builds upon the skills
acquired in previous games. Last year, our students successfully earned over two million stickers and solved over six
million math problems correctly for the year!

The second RTI program that supports basic math skills is Fastt Math. It will be used in all elementary grade K-6
classrooms. Fastt Math nses research-based Fluency and Automaticity through Systemic Teaching with Technology to help
students develop fluency with basic math facts. Students are provided differentiated instruction based on their individual
needs. Teachers are provided on-going professional development that includes program implementation, data analysis and
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how to identify and assist students that require additional support. Teachers will receive professional development and
support through webinar frainings and math coach visits

7. DISTRICT PROGRAMS AND SERVICES:

Professional Development

The District has established professional development goals for the professional growth of its staff.

e To improve curriculumn and instruction in the areas of reading, writing, math and science through the improvement
of teacher knowledge and the use of effective instructional strategies that enhance students’” mastery of the Core
Curriculum Content Standards;

e To integrate technology into the curriculum for the improved integration and management of the curriculum,
enhanced student motivation, and more effective recording of student data;

e To improve the classroom environment through the use of effective behavior modification techniques that address
student attendance, attitudes, and achievement; and

¢ To improve collaborative, collegial interaction for enhanced communication among staff.

In support of these goals, Camden City Public Schools has provided extensive professional development for district staff,
which includes but is not limited to the following:

e Extensive professional development support in mathematics for district statf including:
“Thinking Skills in Mathematics”
“Building Conceptual Understanding Through Math Literature, K-12”
“Teacher Leadership Cadre Calculator Training”
“Middle Grades Math Training”
“Smart Boards Training”

o Rowan University Certificate of Graduate Study in Middle School Mathematics — 11 district grade 6-8
teachers are attending this two year program to prepare for the Praxis in middle school mathematics.

e Monthly math teacher coach meetings facilitated by Rowan University for the purpose of increasing math
capacity for K-8 math coaches.

¢ Partnership with Rowan University and LL Teach, Inc., to provide training sessions targeted specifically to
train math coaches, vice principals and classroom teachers.

e Continuation of partnership with New Jersey Gear Up for CHAMP and other student programs.

¢ Continuation of the Rutgers Future Scholars program offered to first generation, academically talented, low
income students to encourage their participation in a four year field of study after graduation. Students begin
participation the summer following their 8" grade graduation and if accepted to Rutgers upon high school
graduations are eligible for a four year scholarship at Rutgers.

¢ Summer Science Thinking Skills workshops for middle and high school science teachers.

e Expansion of the Camden Principals’ Leadership Academy to include district principals, vice-principals,
supervisors and directors.

o Paraprofessional workshops and mentoring in the Paraprofessional Portfolio Assessment Process.




¢ 100 Professional Development Hours - Collaborated with the Board Policy Committee to create policy and
regulations for 100 Professional Development Hours process.

e Summer Institute V — Extensive summer professional development offering over 47 workshops for district
teachers and other professional staff.

In addition, there has been an ongoing collaboration with Rowan University for the continwed development of two
elementary professional development schools: Cooper’s Poynt Professional Development School and Sumner Professional
Development School. In service components at the Professional Development Schools include graduate studies, staff
development, training workshops, summer institutes, participation and attendance at educational conferences and the
Visiting Teacher Program, which are available to the district's teachers. These professional development schools provide
opportunities for staff growth in a number of areas.

Alternative School Programs

Camden has established alternative schools to house students who cannot easily adjust to the developmental programs
already set up in the district.

The CALP Program houses students needing an alternative form of education from Camden High School and from
Woodrow Wiison High School; CALP accepts both developmental and special education students. Educational programs,
including entrepreneurial programs, are prescribed courses of action for many of those students.

Teachers and staff engage in professional development through training to assist their ability to deliver effective lessons,
supervise close practice of skills and direct the implementation of lessons into life experience. The program offers Diversity
Training (i.e. Rites of Passage for Males and Females, Staff and Student Involvement, anger and behavioral management).
Each student will be given every opportunity to demonstrate academic preparation for the appropriate grade level through
proficiency in basic communication and computational skills in English and math (with necessary provisions and support
systems) or 11" graders who provide evidence that they may be able to obtain a diploma by successtully completing the
SRA process upon reaching 12" grade.

Attaining Firm, Favorable Iustruction to Remain Mainstreamed (Affirm), located on the campus of Camden County
College-Camden Branch is designed to ensure that students receive a quality, relevant education; develop mentally,
physically and emotionally with healthy attitudes. Students are provided the necessary skills in order to become productive
individuals. The school features small classes, which allows students to receive small group instruction from teachers
working, with individualized educational plans that are aligned with the N.J. Core Curriculum Content standards.

Technology Department

All school districts are required to report the number of students that are technologically literate by the end of grade eight.
NJ Administrative Code 6A:8-3.1(a)3 states, "District boards of education shall be responsible for assessing and publicly
reporting on the progress of all students in developing the knowledge and skills specified by the Core Curriculum Content
Standards, including content areas not currently included in the Statewide assessment program.” Therefore districts must
assess and report on New Jersey Core Curriculum Content Standard 8.1. We expect many high school students are currently
not technologically literate and therefore the high schools would also have to report,

As of the release date of this RFI, the data elements that districts will have to report in order to fulfill NCLB requirements
are:

1) The number of 8™ grade students assessed in technological literacy.

2) The number of 8" grade students considered proficient.

3) The number of 8" grade students considered not proficient.

4) The assessment instrument used to assess proficiency.

The district addresses technology literacy skill development by two methods. Whole class instruction is provided in the
Technology Literacy Labs. This ongoing systemic training for students, who generally are not provided access to
technology outside of the classroom, increases the student’s opportunity to develop technology literacy skills.
Reinforcement of these skills takes place within the classroom through technology integration.
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Computer Technology Literacy Labs are in twenty-eight schools. Emphasis is placed on achieving technology literacy wit
emphasis on infusing technology with content area skills. The students’ progress, learning basic skills, and advance to high¢
level activities that include multimedia and desktop publishing.

The Technology Literacy curriculum for grades 3-8 was revised and updated during the summer of 2005.

In order to provide teacher coverage for prep periods, students are scheduled for Special Area Classes. Therefore, not a
students are scheduled for Computer Literacy training in an equitable manner. Some students may never have an opportunity t
receive computer literacy training in the fab setting,

The Technology Department has been diligent in its efforts to increase technology integration in the district. Through a
variety of resowrces and professional development opportunities, the instructional staff is learning to integrate technology
into the curriculum and promote a student-learning environment that assists and encourages technological skills. The
implementation of the district’s certification process for teachers and training model, the new mentoring program,
Technology Integrator of the Month, the math and science middle school technology-based initiatives, distance learning, the
newly devised computer lab curriculum and numerous electronic resources are changing the dynamics of the teaching and
learning process. The district is aggressively moving forward with infegrating many innovative and exciting technology
infegration practices in our schools,

Instructional technology training is now standardized across the district with the use of the District Certification in
Technology guide. The training guide is aligned with the naticnally recognized educational technology standards that are
recommended by the International Society for Technology in Education (ISTE). This resource provides guidance for
training staff and for classroom instruction.

The administrative and support staff are offered technology training through the technology department. Courses include
Introduction to Windows, Infroduction to Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Using Outlook and Internet Resources,
Levels of Technology Integration (LOTTI), and Distance Learning activities.

Summer training for Administrators and district instructional staff was held at the Riggs Training Labs. Ongoing
professional development was offered throughout the school year through the use of teaching and learning data to enhance
technology use with curriculum and instruction,

The district, in partnership with the Camden County Educational Technology Training Center (ETTC) and Chestnut Hill
College, has developed a program of distance learning activities aligned to the global studies curriculum. A ninth grade
class at each high school participates in distance learning experiences based on monthly themes, encompassing various
global studies topics including world culture, economics, politics, peace and conflict studies. The students interact with
professionats, including individuals from the United Nations, government, academia and students from local and foreign
schools and universities, There is also a series of teleconferences related to the biology curriculum.

All middle and family schools in addition to the high schools, and five elementary schools (Sumner, Cramer, Washington,
H.B. Wilson, & Molina) also have distance learning capability and participate in a special program. Third and fourth grade
classes in each of the 5 schools, participate in curriculum-based activities that support and enhance the current science and
social studies curriculum. The elementary projects are designed to coordinate with the Harcourt Brace science and social
studies curricula.

All classrooms have online access to United Streaming, the largest and most current K-12 video/video clip library availabl
today. Thousands of video clips, (26,000 video clips and 2,500 images) accessible from a variety of producers, can be used wit
lesson planning to enhance student knowledge and interest. This powerful standards-based, video-on-demand learning resourc
has been shown to increase student achievement.

A powerful angmentation to the curriculum, this resource is guaranteed to change the “way we teach.,” Classroom teachers
and students will broaden their educational world with the use of this dynamic website.

The videos can be downloaded onto the desktop of a student or teacher computer or viewed by live streaming. Each video
has been indexed, which gives the option of viewing the entire program or watching a short clip.




Facts for Learning is the online subscription service, with separate elementary and middle school modules, It teaches
students research skills wsing the sources they already use and enjoy, like Weekly Reader Classroom magazines, Issues
& Controversies On File, The World Almanac and Book of Facts and The World Almanac for Kids,

The instructional staffs in all schools have been trained fo use the web-based lesson plan management tool, OnCourse.
Teachers ate able to manage lesson plans and stay on course meeting core curriculum content standards, and post
homework, personal web pages and calendars. In addition, principals and supervisors can review and immediately comment
on an entive school or district’s lesson plans by grade and teacher, The OnCourse reporting tools allow principals and
district administrative staff to analyze what is being taught, in conjunction to standards-based teaching performance, and
compare the frequency of standards being taught between teachers, grade levels and individual schools,

Proquest Information and Learning provides a vast range of multi-disciplinary resource. Proquest provides access to one of
the world's largest commercial content holdings of periodicals, newspapers, reference works, works of literature,

Curriculum areas covered are: arts and hunianities, business and management, social sciences to science, technology and
medicine, general references.

District-Wide Technology-Based Curriculum Initiatives

Middle School Science

All middle school science teachers were invited to register for a 10-meeting training session on technology integration in the
science classroom. The program consisted of learning to use a science data logger interface and accompanying probes in
assorted experiments and science classes. Demonstration lessons were provided and each participant offered ideas and gave
examples of how they will utilize the equipment and other technology tools in their classrooms. Participants received a
computer, printer, LCD projector and a set of Pasco science equipment for use in their classroom.

Middle School Math

Middle School Mathematics Teachers have been trained to use the Numonics Interactive WhiteBoard and have learned
techniques of using this innovative tool with their mathematics lessons. WhiteBoards, projectors and computers have been
installed in the middle school classrooms across the district,

School Based Youth Services Programs: Link Project at Camden High School, Tiger’s Lair at Woodrow Wilson High
School and Lion’s Den at East Camden Middle School. The school based youth services program has expanded to all five
middle schools and one alternative high school. In addition, services are provided to three family schools, Bonsall,
Cooper’s Poynt and Cream. These programs continue to provide health and human services to all secondary school
students. The students and their families are provided health and human services, mentoring and academic support; all of
which are supportive of improving student achievement. Childcare services are also provided through the Partners in
Parenting Program at Camden and Woodrow Wilson high schools,

Creative & Performing Arts High School: On August 31, 1999, the Camden City Board of Education premiered its 2nd
Magnet High School. The Creative and Performing Arts High School was created to offer a range of courses in the arts as
well as the state mandated high school requirements, The first class of students performed Romeo and Juliet as well as a
musical designed to bring focus to the Census 2000. Students are taught by educators who are accomplished in the arts as
well as those certified in the Core Curricula. The program is inclusive of activities that are provided by area museums,
community agencies, universities and governmental agencies. The art of learning is learning through the Arts.

21st Century Neighborhood Center: Through the funding of the 21st Century Neighborhood Schools Grants, extended
day programs operated at East Camden Middle, Veterans Memorial Middle, Cooper’s Poynt and Pyne Poynt Family
Schools. The program establishes linkages with community agencies in order to provide quality programs including literacy,
technology, science, health and human service provisions. The students attend year- round activities that have a position
impact upon their achievement.

Special Education: The District provides a full range of program options for special education students from regular classes
to self-contained special classes. Currently, 95% of the District's self contained students are now included in mainstream
settings for at least 21% of the school day. Currently almost 1200 of the districts 3300 special education students are in
regular class settings.




Dy, Charles E. Brimm _Medical Arts High School: On August 28, 1996, the Camden City Board of Education officially
opened its new grade 9-12 Medical Arts High School. The Medical Aris High School is designed to operate as a school with
career focus on the full range of health care services including Medicine, Dentistry, Nursing, Allied Health Professions and
other Ancillary Personnel. The underlying Principles are: 1) the program is reality based, teaching students how to work in
today's world and the world-of-work in the next century. Practical, hands-on experiences will be provided, wherever
possible. 2} Community based in-services are required of all students. 3) Learning cooperative skills and developing
teamwork are an important process, cultivated and practiced among, and between, faculty and students. 4) The program is a
cooperative effort among the Camden School District and the community, universities, hospitals, and business community.

Corrective Action Plan: Camden City Public Schools Corrective Action Plan (CAP) is written in response to the New
Jersey State Department of Education's External Review Team's (ERT) directives. The CAP provides a common
philosophical framework for attaining high student achievement through quality instruction and other initiatives leading to
systemic and cohesive change.

The CAP encompasses and proposes goals, objectives and strategies that clearly define the path toward implementation,
replication, and institutionalization of systemic reform. This plan proposes a series of interrelated goals and strategies
specifically designed to lead the district to achievement of state certification and dramatically improved student
achievement, Everyone in the district is held accountable for the areas of the CAP for which they are responsible.

8. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure
that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP).

The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1} the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As arecipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal
control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those programs. This
internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control
structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the
District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

9. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls., The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of
the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt
service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund,
The final budget amount as amended for the year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis. Open
encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year.
Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2010. An on-line requisition
system has been established to ensure accuracy of account numbers and prevent encumbrances in accounts with insufficient
funds,

10. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:




The District's  accounting records reflect accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of
the District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements," Note 1,

11, FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR END:

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the School District
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

12. DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

At June 30, 2012, the District paid off all outstanding debt. Currently, the School District has no new bonding for the 2012-
2013 school year.

13. CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in "Notes to the Financial
Statements,” Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"),
GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution
in New Jersey, The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

14, RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Camden Board of Education carries various forms of insurance, included but not limited o general liability, automobile
liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

15. OTHER INFORMATION:

A) Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Bowman & Company, LLP, was selected by the Board of Education. In
addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the
Single Aundit Act of 1996 and the related OMB Circular A-133 revised and state OMB Circular 04-04. The auditor's report
on the basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial
section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of
this report,

16. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the City of Camden School Board for their concern in
providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their full support
to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been
accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Rode

Reuben F. M}l
Interinmy, Superintendent of Schools

Interim School Business-Administrator/Board Secretary
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BOWMAN & COMPANY rip

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
City of Camden School District
Camden, New Jersey 08102

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Camden School District, in
the County of Camden, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively
comprise the School District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City of Camden School District's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by the Division
of Administration and Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the School District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Camden School District in the County of Camden, State of New Jersey,
as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 27, 2013 on
our consideration of the City of Camden School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

15
601 White Horse Road | Voorhees, NJ 08043 | P 856.435.6200 | F 856.435.0440 | www.bowmanllp.com



27600

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table of contents be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because of the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Camden School District’s financial statements. The accompanying combining statements and related
major fund supporting statements and schedules and Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State
Financial Assistance, as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and State of New Jersey Circular 04-04-OMB, Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying combining statements and
related major fund supporting statements and schedules and Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Camden School District's basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical section
listed in the table of contents are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
onit.

Respectfully submitted,

L & C"Y"“j/l"f

BOWMAN & COMPANY LLP
Certified Public Accountants
& Consultants

.

Kirk N. Applegate
Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. 20CS00223300

Voorhees, New Jersey
February 27, 2013
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BOWMAN & COMPANY 1ip

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
City of Camden School District
Camden, New Jersey 08102

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Camden School District, in the County of
Camden, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the
School District's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 27, 2013. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and in compliance with audit requirements as prescribed by the Division
of Administration and Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the City of Camden School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Camden
School District's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the School District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Independent Auditor's Management Report on

Administrative Findings - Financial, Compliance and Performance, we identified certain deficiencies in internal

control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses and other deficiencies that we
consider to be significant deficiencies.
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A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the School District’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Independent Auditor's
Management Report on Administrative Findings - Financial, Compliance and Performance to be material
weaknesses as findings no.: 2012-1, 2012-2 and 2012-7.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Independent
Auditor's Management Report on Administrative Findings - Financial, Compliance and Performance to be
significant deficiencies as findings no.: 2012-3, 2012-4, 2012-6, 2012-9, 2012-10 and 2012-14.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Camden School District's financial

statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Administration and
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey and which are described in the accompanying Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs and Independent Auditor's Management Report on Administrative Findings -
Financial, Compliance and Performance as findings no.: 2012-1, 2012-2, 2012-3, 2012-4, 2012-5, 2012-7, 2012-
8,2012-10, 2012-11, 2012-12, 2012-13, 2012-14 and 2012-15.

The City of Camden School District's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the School District's response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, members of the Board of Education,
others within the School District, the Division of Administration and Finance of the New Jersey Department of
Education, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

Bm.— £ &MLLP

BOWMAN & COMPANY LLP
Certified Public Accountants
& Consultants

et/
Kirk N. Applegate

Certified Public Accountant
Public School Accountant No. 20CS00223300

Voorhees, New Jersey
February 27, 2013
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of the City of Camden School District's financial performance provides an
overall review of the School District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The
intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District's financial performance as a whole;
readers should also review the basic financial statements and notes to enhance their understanding of
the School District's financial performance.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 -
Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments issued in June 1999.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2012 are as follows:

> In total, net assets increased $21,271,286.89 which represents a 5.94 percent increase from
2011 mainly attributable to capital asset additions and a decrease in the Unrestricted (Deficit).

» General revenues accounted for $306,802,043.73 in revenue or 79.8 percent of all revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions
and capital grants accounted for $77,460,183.37 or 20.2 percent of total revenues of
$384,262,227.10.

» For governmental and business-type activities, cash and cash equivalents increased by
$19,745,195.80, receivables decreased by $9,299,352.18, accounts payable decreased
$6,392,667.40 and capital assets increased by $3,622,356.28.

» The School District had $362,759,607.00 in expenses; $77,460,183.37 of these expenses was
offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues
(primarily state aid) of $309,680,256.83 were adequate to provide for these programs.

> Among governmental funds, the General Fund had $321,769,932.73 in revenues and
$304,992,357.37 in expenditures (excluding transfers). The General Fund's fund balance
increased $21,431,182.93 over 2011.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand City of Camden School District as a financial

whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at
specific financial activities.
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) (Continued)

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole School District, presenting both an aggregate view of the School District's finances and a longer-
term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental
funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for
future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the School District's most significant funds
with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column. In the case of the School District, the
General Fund is by far the most significant fund.

Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs
and activities, the view of the School District, as a whole looks at all financial transactions and ask the
question, "How did we do financially during 2012?”. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis
of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector businesses. This basis of accounting
takes into account all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or
paid.

These two statements report the School District's net assets and changes in those assets. This change in
net assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, the financial
position of the School district have improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result
of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors include the School District's property
tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required educational
programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

» Governmental Activities - All of the School District's programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil
transportation and extracurricular activities.

» Business-Type Activity - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service enterprise funds
are reported as a business activity.

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the School District's funds. The School District
uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. The School District's governmental
funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Debt Service Fund.
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds (Continued)

Governmental Funds

The School District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the School district's general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader determine whether there are more
or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, these
statements are essentially the same.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the District-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found after
the “Fund Financial Statements” of this report.

The School District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Net
assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.

The District's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of

activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the
depreciation of capital assets.
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

The School District as a Whole (Continued)

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District's net assets for 2012. In accordance with GASB
Statements 34, net asset comparisons of fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 2011 are presented as follow:

Table 1
Net Assets
2012 2011
Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 85,581,196.19 $ 75,494,955.81
Capital Assets 330,818,727.95 327,196,371.67

Total Assets

416,399,924.14

402,691,327.48

Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities 6,260,171.71 4,361,049.67
Other Liabilities 30,758,008.27 40,219,820.54
Total Liabilities 37,018,179.98 44,580,870.21
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Debt 330,376,097.24 326,645,836.80
Restricted 37,215,009.04 32,425,222.23
Unrestricted 11,790,637.88 (960,601.76)
Total Net Assets $ 379,381,744.16 $  358,110,457.27

The District's combined net assets were $379,381,744.16 on June 30, 2012. This was an increase of
5.94% from the prior year mainly attributable to capital asset additions and a decrease in the Unrestricted
Deficit.
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

The School District as a Whole (Continued)

Table 2 shows changes in net assets for year 2012. The District has prepared financial statements in
accordance with GASB Statement 34. Revenue and expense comparisons from year 2012 to year 2011
of district-wide data is as follows:

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 827,398.08 $ 498,528.67

Operating Grants and Contributions 73,267,041.17 64,214,526.74

Capital Grants and Contributions 3,365,744.12 608,630.72
General Revenues:

Property Taxes 7,449,009.00 7,507,790.00

Grants and Entitlements 299,026,648.59 280,222,629.69

Other 326,386.14 (1,001,057.58)

Total Revenues & Transfers

Program Expenses

Instruction

Support Services:
Tuition
Related Services - Pupils and Instructional Staff
General Administration, School Administration,
Business Operations and Maint. of Facilities

384,262,227.10

352,051,048.24

Pupil Transportation

Special Schools

Charter Schools
Interest on Debt
Unallocated Benefits
Unallocated Depreciation
Capital Asset Adjustment
Food Service

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
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117,658,729.34 106,177,938.58
15,922,738.13 17,356,615.33
54,048,697.03 49,723,830.17
18,680,893.82 19,009,067.93
29,509,796.18 28,652,156.67
8,199,881.24 8,057,559.33
34,149.84 41,472.72
37,393,059.00 34,722,650.52
10,542.58

65,935,665.40 60,697,307.16
8,396,054.19 8,427,296.11
7,079,942.83 7,869,311.19
362,759,607.00 340,745,748.29

21,502,620.10 $

11,305,299.95




CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the legal requirements to annually seek voter
approval for the School District operations. Property taxes made up 1.9% percent of revenues for
governmental activities for the School District for year 2012. The District's total revenues were
$377,254,045.98 for the year ended June 30, 2012.

Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2012

Other,

Property Taxes, $2,219,279.57

$7,449,009.00

Federal/State Aid,
$367,565,729.95

The total cost of all program and services was $355,679,664.17. Instruction comprises 33% percent of
District expenses.

Expensesfor Fiscal Year 2012

Charter Schools Other
11% 2%

Instruction
/ 33%

Unallocated Benefits
19%

Maintenance
8%

Transportation /

B : Student &
InstructionRelated
Services
. 0,
2% Administration Tuition 15%

5% 5%
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Revenues for the District's business-type activities (Food Service Program) were comprised of charges
for services and federal and state reimbursements.

» Food service expenses exceeded revenues, excluding District contributions, by $51,734.25.

» Charges for food services represent $550,501.53 of revenue. This represents amounts paid by
patrons for daily food service.

> Food Service federal and state reimbursements for meals, including payments for free and

reduced lunches,
$6,477,707.05.

Governmental Activities

breakfasts and snack programs,

and donated commodities were

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The net
cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the District's taxpayers by each of these functions.

Instruction
Support Services:
Tuition
Pupils and Instructional Staff
General & School Admin.
Bus. Oper.and Maint. of Facilities
Pupil Transportation
Special Schools
Charter Schools
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Other Unallocated
Total Expenses

$

$ 355,679,664.17 $

Table 3

Total Cost of

Services 2012

Net Cost of

Services 2012

Total Cost of
Services 2011

Net Cost of

Services 2011

117,558,729.34 §

15,922,738.13
54,048,697.03
18,680,893.82
29,509,796.18
8,199,881.24
34,149.84
37,393,059.00

74,331,719.59

94,221,105.85 $

15,922,738.13
31,012,469.74
18,680,893.82
29,509,796.18
8,187,122.86
34,149.84
37,393,059.00

50,286,353.96

106,177,938.58 $

17,356,615.33
49,723,830.17
19,009,067.93
28,652,156.67
8,057,559.33
41,472.72
34,722,650.52
10,542.58
69,124,603.27

89,116,687.98

17,356,615.33
28,337,154.79
19,009,067.93
28,652,156.67
8,039,049.83
41,472.72
34,722,650.52
2,000.17
49,050,270.37

285,247,689.38 $

332,876,437.10 $

274,327,126.31

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and

process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

26



CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities (Continued)

General administration, school administration, and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings, and equipment in
an effective working condition.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as
well as to and from school activities, as provided by State law.

Interest on debt involves the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other related
charges to debt of the School District.

The School District's Funds

All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects and debt service fund
presented in the fund-based statements) are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Total revenues amounted to $380,112,231.62 and expenditures were $360,984,096.26. After
deducting other financing uses, the net change in fund balance for the fiscal year was $17,269,326.36.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report,
the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules
present a summary of the revenues of the governmental funds for the year ended June 30, 2012, and the
amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues.

Increase Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase
Revenue Amount Total from 2011 (Decrease)
Local Sources $ 10,998,227.06 3%$ (2,116,393.28) -16%
State Sources 332,499,873.13 87% 17,861,355.81 6%
Federal Sources 36,614,131.43 10% 12,729,553.37 53%
Total $ 380,112,231.62 100.0% $ 28,474,515.90 8%
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

The School District's Funds (Continued)

The following schedule represents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund, capital and debt
service fund expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2012, and the percentage of increases and
decreases in relation to prior year amounts.

Increase Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount Total from 2011 (Decrease)
Current expense:

Instruction $ 117,558,729.34 32.57% $ 11,380,790.76 10.72%
Support Services 192,220,729.80 53.26% 7,130,218.21 3.85%
Capital Outlay 13,777,428.28 3.82% (10,644,594.75) -43.59%
Special and Charter Schools 37,427,208.84 10.37% 2,663,085.60 7.66%
Debt Service - 0.00% (228,501.00) -2.22%
Total $ 360,984,096.26 100.00% $ 10,300,998.82 2.94%

Changes in expenditures were the results of varying factors. Current expense decreased due to budget
costs associated with a decline in enrollment. School improvements are 100% funded by the State of
New Jersey. There was a decrease in the NJSDA related capital expenditures in fiscal 2012.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. Revisions in
the budget were made to recognize revenues that were not anticipated and to prevent over-expenditures
in specific line item accounts. Several of these revisions bear notation:

> As the result of the economy, competitive financial rates were down from prior years. We were
not able to achieve a favorable interest rate which resulted in a decrease in interest income over
the estimated budget.

» During the course of fiscal year 2012, the District modified the General Fund Budget as needed in
an effort to ensure no line item was projected to be over-expended.

» The District continues to adopt prudent fiscal management by continuously implementing policies
and procedures to ensure the reliability of the monthly financial reports.
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

At the end of the year 2012, the School District had $330,017,086.58 invested in land, building, furniture
and equipment, and vehicles, net of depreciation. Table 4 shows year 2012 balances compared to 2011.

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30,
2012 2011
Land and Site Improvements $ 19,960,901.47 $ 19,048,584.00
Construction in Progress 74,559,778.12 69,111,652.43
Building and Building Improvements 311,036,773.98 309,249,385.95
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 14,966,800.42 11,460,566.10
Total $ 420,524,253.99 $ 408,870,088.48
Less: Accumuléted Depreciation (90,507,167.41) (82,834,999.32)

$ 330,017,086.58 $ 326,035,089.16

Overall capital assets increased $3,981,997.42 from $326,035,089.16 for fiscal year 2011 to
$330,017,086.58 for fiscal year 2012. The increase in capital assets is due to new capital purchases.
For more detailed information, please refer to the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2012, the School District had $5,817,541.00 of outstanding obligations. The entire amount is
for compensated absences.

Factors Bearing on the District’s Future

State Funding — a crucial element to maintaining Districts improved financial condition is directly linked to
sustaining an adequate level of State support. Historically, State funding to the District accounted for
over ninety seven percent (97%) of the total general fund operating budget. This funding level is
necessary to ensure that the District can continue to provide a thorough and efficient education to the
students in the City of Camden.

Contacting the School District's Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the School District's finances and to show the School District's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the School
Business Administrator/Board Secretary at the City of Camden School District Administrative Office
located at: 201 N, Front St., Camden, New Jersey 08102.
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27600 Exhibit A-1
CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2012
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 38,666,952.85 $ 775,883.05 $ 39,442,835.90
Receivables, net 2,539,703.22 1,812,531.75 4,352,234.97
Interfund Accounts Receivable 479,749.78 479,749.78
Restricted Assets:

Capital Reserve Account - Cash 899,560.62 899,560.62

Receivables, net 40,406,814.92 40,406,814.92
Capital Assets, net 330,017,086.58 801,641.37 330,818,727.95
Total Assets 413,009,867.97 3,390,056.17 416,399,924.14
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 8,023,291.99 1,418,142.88 9,441,434.87
Other Current Liablities 525,000.00 525,000.00
Interfund Accounts Payable 885,730.80 (881,963.28) 3,767.52
Intergovernmental Payable 4,013,429.69 6,230.12 4,019,659.81
Deferred Revenue 16,765,098.80 3,047.27 16,768,146.07
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Due within One Year 720,020.00 136,554.36 856,574.36

Due beyond One Year 5,097,521.00 306,076.35 5,403,597.35
Total Liabilities 36,030,092.28 988,087.70 37,018,179.98
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 330,017,086.58 359,010.66 330,376,097.24
Restricted for:

Capital Projects 14,884,125.04 14,884,125.04

Other Purposes 22,330,884.00 22,330,884.00
Unrestricted (Deficit) 9,747,680.07 2,042,957.81 11,790,637.88
Total Net Assets $ 376,979,775.69 $ 2,401,968.47 $ 379,381,744.16

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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27600 Exhibit B-3

CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 17,269,326.36

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which actual capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.

Depreciation Expense $ (8,396,054.19)
Capital Asset Additions 13,351,418.99

4,955,364.80

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses are measured by the amounts earned during
the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are reported in the amount
of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference
is a reduction in the reconciliation; when the paid amount exceeds the earned amount, the difference
is an addition to the reconciliation. (76,942.00)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 21,174,381.81

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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27600 Exhibit B-4
CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2012
Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Food
Service
ASSETS:
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 775,883.05

Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable:

State 25,080.72

Federal 1,722,640.78

Interfund Accounts Receivable:

Due General Fund 752,919.10

Due Special Revenue Fund 132,635.20

Due Student Activities Agency Fund

Accounts Receivable 64,810.25
Total Current Assets 3,473,969.10
Noncurrent Assets:

Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 2,281,987.94

Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,480,346.57)
Total Noncurrent Assets 801,641.37
Total Assets 4,275,610.47
LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 1,418,142.88

Deferred Revenue 3,047.27

Loans Payable 136,554.36

Interfund Accounts Payable:

Due Student Activity Fund 3,591.02

Intergovernmental Accounts Payable:

Federal 6,230.12
Total Current Liabilities 1,667,565.65
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Loans Payable 306,076.35
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 306,076.35
Total Liabilities 1,873,642.00
NET ASSETS:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 359,010.66
Unrestricted 2,042,957.81

Total Net Assets

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit B-5

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for Services:
Daily Sales-Reimbursable Programs
Daily Sales-Non-reimbursable Programs
Vending
Special Functions

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee Benefits

Purchased Professional Services
Purchased Property Services
Other Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Food Supplies

Miscellaneous Expenditures
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):

State Sources:

State School Lunch Program
Federal Sources:

School Breakfast Program

National School Lunch Program

Snack Program

Food Distribution Program

Fresh Fruits and Vegetables Program
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Loss before Contributions and Transfers
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Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Food
Service

$ 88,248.35
393,005.77
242.96
69,004.45

550,501.53

2,518,657.68
415,521.54
563,737.47
94,225.15
163,039.57
703,042.10
2,431,780.37
64,239.14
135,699.81

7,079,942.83

(6,529,441.30)

94,141.70

1,298,617.17

4,507,977.55
110,293.48
300,717.90
165,959.256
(20,027.46)

6,457,679.59

(71,761.71)

(Continued)
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-Type

Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Food
Service
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating Transfer in - General Fund $  400,000.00
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 400,000.00
Change in Net Assets 328,238.29
Net Assets - July 1 2,305,063.39
Prior Period Adjustments (Note 15) (231,333.21)
Net Assets - July 1 (Restated) 2,073,730.18
Net Assets - June 30 $ 2,401,968.47

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Exhibit B-6

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from Customers
Payments to Employees
Payments for Employee Benefits
Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

State Sources

Federal Sources
Transfers to Other Funds
Operating Subsidies

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Capital Assets
Payment of Loans

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - July 1

Cash and Cash Equivalents - June 30

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used)
by Operating Activities:
Operating Loss
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Net Amortization
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable Other
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by (used for) Operating Activities

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Fund
Food
Service

$ 503,628.27
(2,519,952.45)
(415,637.47)
(4,780,077.53)

(7,212,039.18)

93,004.06
6,271,251.48
318,466.23
400,000.00

7,082,721.77

(27,419.31)
(136,987.97)

(164,407.28)

(293,724.69)

1,069,607.74

$ 775,883.05

$ (6,529,441.30)

135,699.81
544,687.38

(1,392,109.48)
29,083.80
40.61

(682,597.88)

$ (7,212,039.18)
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
As of June 30, 2012

Trust Fund Agency Funds
Unemployment
Compensation Student
Trust Activity Payroll
ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 310,373.14 $ 153,031.39 $ 1,138,817.48
Intergovernmental Accounts Receivable:

State 6,800.45

Federal
Other Accounts Receivable 310.68
Intrafund Accounts Receivable 84,833.60
Interfund Accounts Receivable:

Due General Fund 176.50

Due Food Service Fund 3,591.02

Total Assets 402,007.19 156,798.91 1,139,128.16
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 285,638.92
Intrafund Accounts Payable 84,833.60
Interfund Accounts Payable:

Due General Fund 479,749.78
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 574,544.78
Payable to Student Groups 156,798.91

Total Liabilities 285,638.92 $  156,798.91 $ 1,139,128.16
NET ASSETS:
Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims
and Other Purposes 116,368.27
Total Net Assets $ 116,368.27

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Unemployment
Compensation
Trust
ADDITIONS:

Employee Salary Deductions $ 260,419.47

Board Contributions 250,000.00

Refund of Prior Year Expenditures 78,318.62

Accounts Payable Canceled 433,115.20
Total Additions 1,021,853.29
DEDUCTIONS:

Unemployment Compensation Claims 625,539.44
Total Deductions 625,539.44
Change in Net Assets 396,313.85
Net Assets - July 1 (279,945.58)
Net Assets -- June 30 3 116,368.27

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CAMDEN SCHOOL DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of the Reporting Entity — The City of Camden School District (hereafter referred to as the
“School District”) is a Type | district located in the County of Camden, State of New Jersey. As a Type |
district, the School District functions independently through a Board of Education. The Board is
comprised of nine members who serve three-year terms. These terms are staggered so that three
member's terms expire each year. Board members are appointed by the City of Camden Mayor. The
purpose of the School District is to educate students in grades Preschool through 12 within the School
District. The School District had an approximate enroliment at June 30, 2012 of 15,300.

The primary criterion for including activities within the School District's reporting entity, as set forth in
Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards,
is the degree of oversight responsibility maintained by the School District. Oversight responsibility
includes financial interdependency, selection of governing authority, designation of management, ability
to significantly influence operations and accountability for fiscal matters. The combined financial
statements include all funds of the School District over which the Board exercises operating control.
There were no additional entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as
described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the School District is not includable in any
other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

Basis of Presentation - The financial statements of the School District have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
School District also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations, issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its business-type activities and enterprise
funds, provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant of
the School District's accounting policies are described in this note.

The School District's basic financial statements consist of district-wide statements, including a statement
of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed
level of financial information.

District-wide Financial Statements - The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the School District as a whole. These statements include the financial
activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between
those activities of the School District that are governmental and those that are considered business-type
activities. The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and
business-type activities of the School District at fiscal year end. The statement of activities presents a
comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the School
District's governmental activities and for the business-type activities of the School District. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and,
therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function. The policy of the School District is to not allocate
indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include charges paid by
the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants, and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program, and interest earned on grants
that is required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues, which are not classified as
program revenues, are presented as general revenues of the School District, with certain limited
exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which
each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of
the School District.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Basis of Presentation (Cont’d)

Fund Financial Statements - During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related
to certain School District functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management
and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial
information of the School District at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise
fund financial statements is on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a single column. The
fiduciary fund is reported by type. The School District uses funds to maintain its financial records during
the fiscal year. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.
There are three categories of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions

typically are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of
current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds
according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the
fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is
reported as fund balance. The following are the School District's major governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the School District. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional
equipment classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the School District includes
budgeted capital outlay in this fund. Accounting principles generally accepted. in the United States
of America, as they pertain to governmental entities, state that general fund resources may be used
to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such
cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey aid,
district taxes, and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those which result in the acquisition
of or additions to capital assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction
of buildings, additions to, or remodeling of buildings, and the purchase of built-in equipment.

The blended resource fund (fund 15), a subfund of the general fund, was created to allow budgeting
of school-level appropriations and accounting for school level expenditures. Revenues are
recorded in fund 15 as operating transfers from the general fund (fund 11) and the special revenue
fund. The general fund includes funds 11-13, which collectively represent the operating fund of the
School District, and a fund 15 for each school. Fund 15 is a school-level accounting while funds
11-13 are district-level accounting.

In addition to the capital outlay sub-fund, the School District is accountable for an additional sub-
fund, the Education Jobs Fund (“Ed Jobs"), resulting from federal legislation signed into law on
August 10, 2010. The Ed Jobs program was created to provide funding assistance to states in
order to save or create education jobs for the 2010-2011 school year, through September 30, 2012.
Jobs funded under this program include those that provide educational and related services for
early childhood, elementary, and secondary education. Ed Jobs revenues and expenditures are
recorded in the general fund (fund 18) on a reimbursement basis. As such, revenue is not included
in the fiscal year surplus, and no portion of general fund balance at June 30, 2012 is considered to
be attributable to Ed Jobs. Ed Jobs expenditures at June 30, 2012 are included as a component of
overall general fund expenditures, and also are included in total general fund expenditures for
purposes of the excess surplus calculation.

Special Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds
of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes
other than debt service or capital projects.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Fund Financial Statements (Cont’d)

Governmental Funds (Cont’d)

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial
resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including
the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed
by proprietary funds. The financial resources are derived from New Jersey Economic Development
Authority grants, temporary notes, or serial bonds which are specifically authorized by the voters as
a separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for and report financial resources
that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are used to account for the School District’'s ongoing activities,
which are similar to those found in the private sector.

Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are used to account for operations

1. that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the
intent of the School District is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing
goods or services to the students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges; or

2. where the School District has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, and / or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The School District's enterprise fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund which accounts for the
financial transactions related to the food service operations of the School District.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement
focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncurrent, associated with
their activity are included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net assets) is
segregated into investment in capital assets, net of related debt, and unrestricted net assets, if
applicable. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense
against their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets.
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Equipment 5-15 Years
Vehicles 5 Years
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets. The
fiduciary fund category is split into two classifications: trust funds and agency funds. Agency funds are
used to account for assets held by the School District in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, other governments, and / or other funds (i.e., payroll and student activities). They
are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations.
The School District has three fiduciary funds: an unemployment compensation trust fund, a student
activity fund and a payroll fund. The following is a description of the fiduciary funds of the District.

Trust Funds - The unemployment compensation trust fund is accounted for using the economic
resources measurement focus. The unemployment compensation trust fund is used to account for
contributions and interest earned on the balance as well as payments to the State for reimbursement
of unemployment claims.

Agency Funds - The student activity and payroll funds are used to account for the assets that the
District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not
involve measurement of results of operations.

Measurement Focus

The district-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.
All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the School District are included on the
statement of net assets.

For the fund financial statements, all governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current
financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses
(i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from
the manner in which the governmental activities of the district-wide financial statements are prepared.
Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation, with brief explanations to
better identify the relationship between the district-wide statements and the statements for governmental
funds.

Like the district-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds
are included on the statement of net assets. The statement of changes in fund net assets presents
increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The statement of cash
flows provides information about how the School District finances and meets the cash flow needs of its
proprietary activities. Fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on
the financial statements. District-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting.

For fund financial statements, all governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Proprietary and fiduciary funds, like the district-wide financial statements, use the accrual basis of
accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the
recognition of revenue and the presentation of expenses versus expenditures.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Basis of Accounting (Cont’d)

Recognition of Revenue - Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, which are defined as
transactions in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual
basis when the exchange takes place. For the governmental fund financial statements, which are
prepared on the modified accrual basis, however, such revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which
the resources are measurable and become available. Available means that the resources will be
collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the School District, available means expected to
be received within sixty days after fiscal year end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the School District receives value without directly giving equal
value in return, include Ad Valorem (property) taxes, grants, entittements, and donations. Ad Valorem
(property) taxes are susceptible to accrual. As under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is
required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified,
prior to the end of the school year. The School District records the entire approved tax levy as
revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year since the revenue is both measurable and available.
The School District is entitled to receive moneys under the established payment schedule and the
unpaid amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable". With the exception of the restricted
formula aids recorded in the special revenue fund, revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the fiscal year when the resources are
required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the
School District must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the School District on a reimbursement basis.
Restricted formula aids, which include Preschool Education Aid, are recorded in the special revenue
fund in accordance with The Audit Program promulgated by the New Jersey Department of Education,
which requires that these grants be realized in an amount equal to program expenditures

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both
measurable and available at fiscal year end: tuition, grants, fees, and rentals.

Expenses / Expenditures - On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time
they are incurred. The fair value of donated commodities used during the fiscal year is reported in the
operating statement as an expense. Unused donated commodities are reported as deferred revenue.
The measurement focus of governmental fund financial statements is on decreases in net financial
resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such
as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in governmental funds.

Budgets / Budgetary Control - Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each fiscal
year for the general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county
office and are voted upon at the annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are
prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is
established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
6A:23A-16.2(f)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made by school board resolution at any time
during the fiscal year in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-13.3.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device
during the fiscal year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the
budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the one or more June state
aid payments for budgetary purposes only, and the special revenue fund. Encumbrance accounting is
also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Budgets / Budgetary Control (Cont’d) - The accounting records of the special revenue fund are
maintained on the budgetary basis. The budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the budgetary basis
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of
GAAP basis financial reports.

The budget, as detailed on Exhibit C-1 and Exhibit C-2,includes all amendments to the adopted budget,
if any.

Exhibit C-3 presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues and special revenue fund revenues
and expenditures from the budgetary basis of accounting, as presented in the general fund budgetary
comparison schedule and the special revenue fund budgetary comparison schedule, to the GAAP basis
of accounting as presented in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds. Note that the School District does not report encumbrances outstanding at fiscal
year end as expenditures in the general fund since the general fund budget follows the modified accrual
basis of accounting, with the exception of the revenue recognition policy for the one or more June state
aid payments.

Encumbrances - Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation.
Encumbrances are a component of fund balance at fiscal year end as they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities, but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and
services. Open encumbrances in the governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, which
have not been previously restricted, committed, or assigned, should be included within committed or
assigned fund balance, as appropriate.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, however, for which the School District has received
advances of grant awards, are reflected on the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at
the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the
outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents, for all funds, include petty
cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or
less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest. Such is the definition of cash
and cash equivalents used in the statement of cash flows for the proprietary funds. U.S. treasury and
agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when purchased are
stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions
they may investin. N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased
by New Jersey school districts.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless
such funds are secured in accordance with the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (‘GUDPA"), a
multiple financial institutional collateral pool, which was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units
from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. Public depositories
include State or federally chartered banks, savings banks or associations located in or having a branch
office in the State of New Jersey, the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories
must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily balance
of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental units. If a public depository fails, the
collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the amount
of their deposits to the governmental units.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Tuition Receivable - Tuition charges were established by the School District based on estimated costs.
The charges are subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined.

Tuition Payable - Tuition charges for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were based on
rates established by the receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have
been determined.

Inventories - Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market. The costs are determined on
a first-in, first-out method.

The cost of inventories in the governmental fund financial statements is recorded as expenditures when
purchased rather than when consumed.

Inventories recorded on the district-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types are
recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid expenses recorded on the district-wide financial statements and in the
proprietary fund types represent payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond
June 30, 2012.

In the governmental fund financial statements, however, payments for prepaid items are fully recognized
as an expenditure in the fiscal year of payment. No asset for the prepayment is created, and no
expenditure allocation to future accounting periods is required (non-allocation method). This is
consistent with the basic governmental concept that only expendable financial resources are reported by
a specific fund.

Deferred Expenditures - Deferred expenditures are disbursements that are made in one period, but are
more accurately reflected as an expenditure / expense in the next fiscal period. Unlike prepaid
expenses, deferred expenditures are not regularly recurring costs of operations.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables / Payables - Short-term interfund receivables / payables represent
amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or services rendered to / from a particular fund in
the School District, and that are due within one year. These amounts are eliminated in the district-wide
financial statements, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type
activities.

Capital Assets - General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in
the proprietary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds.
These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the district-wide statement of net
assets, but are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the
proprietary funds, however, are reported both in the business-type activities column of the district-wide
statement of net assets and the proprietary fund statement of net assets.

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the fiscal year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market value as of the
date received. The School District maintains a capitalization threshold of $2,000.00. The School District
does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not. All reported
capital assets, except land and construction in progress, are depreciated. Improvements are
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Cont'd)

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Capital Assets (Cont’d) - Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Buildings and Improvements 5-50 Years N/A
Furniture and Equipment 5-20 Years 5-15 Years
Vehicles 5-10 Years 5 Years

Accrued Salaries and Wages - Certain School District employees who provide services to the School
District over the ten-month academic year have the option to have their salaries evenly disbursed during
the entire twelve-month year. New Jersey statutes require that these earned but undisbursed amounts
be retained in a separate bank account. As of June 30, 2012, the amounts earned by these employees
were disbursed to the employees' own individual credit union accounts.

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be
paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are
attributable to services already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside
the control of the School District and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the
benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event
that is outside the control of the School District and its employees, are accounted for in the period in
which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the district-wide financial statements.

For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the
amount that is normally expected to be paid with expendable available financial resources. In the
proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated absences is recorded as a fund liability.

Deferred Revenue - Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition
criteria have been satisfied.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations - All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term
obligations are reported in the district-wide financial statements, and all payables, accrued liabilities, and
long-term obligations payable from proprietary funds are reported on the proprietary fund financial
statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid
in a timely manner, and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds.
However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination benefits, and contractually
required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds, are reported as a liability in the
fund financial statements only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with expendable
available financial resources. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the governmental fund financial
statements when due.

Net Assets - Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in
capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
either through the enabling legislation adopted by the School District or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

It is the School District's policy to apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes
for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Fund Balance - The School District reports fund balance in classifications that comprise a hierarchy
based primarily on the extent to which the School District is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. The School District's classifications, and
policies for determining such classifications, are as follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact. The “not in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to
cash, such as inventories and prepaid amounts.

Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific
purposes. Such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources either by being (1)
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or
(2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Commiitted - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the School District's highest
level of decision-making authority, which, for the School District, is the Board of Education. Such
formal action consists of an affirmative vote by the Board of Education, memorialized by the adoption
of a resolution. Once committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of
Education removes, or changes, the specified use by taking the same type of action (resolution) it
employed to previously commit those amounts.

Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the
School District's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.
Intent is expressed by either the Board of Education or by the business administrator, to which the
Board of Education has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes.
Such authority of the business administrator is established by way of a formal job description for the
position, approved by the Board of Education.

Unassigned - The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for the general
fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that
has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The
general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other
governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund
balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances
are available, it is the policy of the School District to spend restricted fund balances first. Moreover,
when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications can be used, it is the policy of the School District to spend fund balances, if appropriate, in
the following order: committed, assigned, then unassigned.

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses - Operating revenues are those revenues
that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary funds. For the School District,

these revenues are sales for the food service program. Non-operating revenues consist of federal and
state subsidies.

Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are the primary
activity of the fund.
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Interfund Activity - Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the district-wide
statements are reported in the same manner as general revenues. Exchange transactions between
funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures / expenses in the purchaser
funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are
reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources / uses in
governmental funds and after non-operating revenues / expenses in proprietary funds. Reimbursements
from funds responsible for particular expenditures / expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are
not presented on the financial statements.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may
differ from those estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank
failure, the School District's deposits might not be recovered. Although the School District does not have
a formal policy regarding custodial credit risk, N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. requires that governmental units
shall deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). Under the Act, the first $250,000.00 of
governmental deposits in each insured depository is protected by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). Public funds owned by the School District in excess of FDIC insured amounts are
protected by GUDPA. However, GUDPA does not protect intermingled trust funds such as salary
withholdings, athletic and student activity funds, or funds that may pass to the School District relative to
the happening of a future condition. Such funds are shown as uninsured and uncollateralized in the
schedule below.

As of June 30, 2012, the School District's bank balances of $51,559,245.50 were exposed to custodial
credit risk as follows:

Insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) $ 250,000.00

Uninsured and uncollateralized 2,417,456.20

Collateralized by securities held by the
pledging financial institution's trust
department or agent but not in the
depositor-government's name 48,891,789.30

Total $ 51,559,245.50

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the School District by inclusion of $1.00 on October 12,
2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years.
The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general
fund annual budget.
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Note 3: CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT (CONT’D)
Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the School District's
approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a
school district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual
general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at fiscal year-end (June 1 to
June 30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. A
school district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has
been obtained by either a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four
special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g), the
balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects
in its approved LRFP.
The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 fiscal year is as follows:
Balance July 1, 2011 $ 1,693,010.44
increased by:
Transfer from Capital Projects Fund:
Local Share of Unexpended Project Balance 56,550.18
1,749,560.62
Decreased by:
Withdrawals:
Budgeted Withdrawal for Local Share--Capital Outlay 850,000.00
Balance June 30, 2012 $ 899,560.62
The June 30, 2012 capital reserve balance does not exceed the LRFP balance of local support costs of
uncompleted projects.
Note 4: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2012 consisted of accounts (fees) and intergovernmental grants. All
receivables are considered collectible in full due to the stable condition of state programs and the current
fiscal year guarantee of federal funds.

Accounts receivable as of fiscal year end for the School District's individual major and fiduciary funds, in
the aggregate, are as follows:

Inter-
Fund Governmental Other Total
General $ 2,406,118.35 $ 133,584.87 $ 2,5639,703.22
Special Rewvenue 25,333,771.24 25,333,771.24
Capital Projects 15,073,043.68 15,073,043.68
Proprietary 1,747,721.50 64,810.25 1,812,531.75

$ 44,560,654.77 $ 198,395.12 $ 44,759,049.89
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Note 5: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets not being
Depreciated

Land improvements

Buildings and Improvements

Motor Vehicles, Machinery and
Equipment

Totals at Historical Cost
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Motor Vehicles, Machinery and
Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activities:
Motor Vehicles, Machinery and
Equipment

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Business-Type Activities Capital
Assets, Net

(1) Restated--See Note 15

* Depreciation expense w asnot charged to specific governmental functions.

Balance

July1,2011 (1

$ 13,541,000.00
69,111,562.43

5,448,225.69

Balance
June 30, 2012

$ 13,485,700.00
74,559,778.12

82,652,552.43

5,507,584.00
309,249,385.95

11,460,566.10

(1,460,233.48)

88,045,478.12

6,475,201.47
311,036,773.98

14,966,800.42

408,870,088.48

13,351,418.99 (1,641,953.48)

420,524,253.99

(3,971,997.72)
(71,457 ,421.98)

(7.405,579.65)

(6,812,059.47)

(1,430,425.47)

(4,054,486.97)
(77,773,078.65)

(8,679,601.79)

(82,834,999.35)

(8,396,054.19) *

(90,507,167.41)

$ 326,035,089.13

$ 4,955,364.80

$ 330,017,086.58

$ 2,315,968.63
(1,386,019.30)

$ 2,281,987.94
(1,480,346.57)

$ 929,949.33

$ 801,641.37

Capital asset additions recorded as Construction in Progress represent capital expenditures made from NJSDA grants by the

New Jersey School Development Authority on behalf of the District.
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Note 6: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the following changes occurred in long-term obligations:

Principal Principal
Outstanding Outstanding Due Within
July 1. 2011 Additions Reductions June 30, 2012 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 5,740,599.00 $ 76,942.00 $ - $ 5,817,541.00 $ 720,020.00
Business- Type Activities:
Loans Payable $ 550,534.87 $ - $ (107,904.16) $ 442,630.71 $ 136,554.36

Bonds Payable - As of June 30, 2012, the School District had no outstanding bonded debt.

Bonds Authorized but not Issued - As of June 30, 2012, the School District had no authorizations to
issue bonded debt.

Loans Payable - As of June 30, 2012, the School District had loans payable, recorded in the Food
Service Enterprise Fund, totaling $442,630.71. The loans are the result of the Food Service
Management Company purchasing capital assets on behalf of the School District. The repayment of the
loans is included in the monthly invoice paid by the School District in accordance with the Food Service
Management Contract.

Compensated Absences - Compensated absences will be paid from the fund from which the
employees’ salaries are paid.

Note 7: OPERATING LEASES

At June 30, 2012, the School District had operating lease agreements in effect for copy machines. The
future minimum rental payments under the operating lease agreements are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, Amount
2013 $ 524,532.00

Rental payments under operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 were $524,532.00.
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Note 8: PENSION PLANS

A substantial number of the School District's employees participate in one of the following defined benefit
pension plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund and the Public Employees' Retirement System,
which are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. In addition, several
School District employees are enrolled in the Defined Contribution Retirement Program, which is a
defined contribution pension plan also administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and
Benefits. Each plan has a Board of Trustees that is primarily responsible for its administration. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to:

State of New Jersey

Division of Pensions and Benefits
P.O. Box 295

Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) is a cost-
sharing contributory defined benefit pension plan which was established as of January 1, 1955, under
the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66. The TPAF provides retirement, death, and disability, and medical
benefits to qualified members. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 18A:66.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance with
Chapters 113, 114 and 115, P.L. 1997, plan members enrolled in the TPAF were required to contribute
5% of their annual covered salary. Effective July 1, 2007, however, in accordance with Chapter 92, P.L.
2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members were required to contribute 5.5% of their annual
covered salary. For employees who were enrolled in the retirement system prior to July 1, 2007, the
increase was effective with the payroll period that began immediately after July 1, 2007. Pursuant to the
provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective October 1, 2011, the active member contribution rate was
increased to 6.5%. An additional 1.0% increase will be phased-in over seven years beginning on July 1,
2012. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to make temporary reductions in member
rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however, statute also
requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exist.

Under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the
School District and all other related non-contributing employers. No normal or accrued liability
contribution by the district has been required over several preceding fiscal years.

Public Employees' Retirement System - The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan which was established as of January 1, 1955.
The PERS provides retirement, death, and disability, and medical benefits to qualified members.
Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43:3B.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance with
Chapter 62, P.L. 1994, plan members enrolled in the Public Employees' Retirement System were
required to contribute 5% of their annual covered salary. Effective July 1, 2008, however, in accordance
with Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members are required to contribute 5.5%
of their annual covered salary. For employees enrolled in the retirement system prior to July 1, 2008,
the increase is effective with the payroll period that begins immediately after July 1, 2008. Pursuant to
the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective October 1, 2011, the active member contribution rate
was increased to 6.5%. An additional 1.0% increase will be phased-in over seven years beginning on
July 1, 2012. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to make temporary reductions in
member rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however, the
statute also requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exist.
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Note 8:

Note 9:

PENSION PLANS (CONT’D)

Public Employees' Retirement System (Cont’d) - The School District is billed annually for its normal
contribution plus any accrued liability. The School District's contributions, equal to the required
contribution for each fiscal year, were as follows:

Paid by
Fiscal Normal Accrued Total School
Year Contribution Liability Liability Deferral District
2012 $1,596,971.00 $ 2,681,425.00 $ 4,278,396.00 $ 216,700.00 $ 4,495,096.00
2011 1,777,050.00 2,365,650.00 4,142,700.00 - 4,142,700.00
2010 1,688,875.00 1,647,864.00 3,336,739.00 - 3,336,739.00

Pension Deferral — Public Law 2009, ¢.19 (S-21) was enacted on March 17, 2009 and allowed the
Division of Pensions and Benefits to provide non-state government pension system employers the option
of paying the full amount, or an amount that reflects a 50 percent reduction of the normal and accrued
liability component of the PERS and PFRS obligations for payments due in the State fiscal year ending
June 30, 2009. The payments were due on April 1, 2009 (with a grace period until April 30). The
amount will be repaid over a 15 year period. The amount will fluctuate based on pension system
investment earnings on the deferred amount.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program - The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution pension fund which was established on July 1,
2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 (N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et.
seq.), and expanded under the provisions of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 1, P.L. 2010. The
Defined Contribution Retirement Program Board oversees the DCRP, which is administered for the
Division of Pensions and Benefits by Prudential Financial. The DCRP provides eligible members, and
their beneficiaries, with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life insurance
and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et. seq.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by State statute. In accordance with
Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members are required to contribute 5.5% of
their annual covered salary. In addition to the employee contributions, the School District's contribution
amounts for each pay period are transmitted to Prudential Financial not later than the fifth business day
after the date on which the employee is paid for that pay period.

The School District's required contributions for fiscal year 2012 were $1,486.24.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

P.L. 1987, c.384 of P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachers’ Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those
State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement.
P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of postemployment medical benefits through
the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and
payment of postemployment medical benefits for retired State employees and retired educational
employees. As of June 30, 2011, there were 93,323 retirees eligible for postemployment medical
benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P.L.
1994, ¢.62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-
as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 ¢.126, which provides free health
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retire from a board of education or
county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $144 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for
15,709 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2011.
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Note 10:

Note 11:

ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the School District has recognized as revenues and
expenditures on-behalf payments made by the State for normal costs and post-retirement costs related
to TPAF. The amounts recognized as revenues and expenditures for normal costs and post-retirement
costs were $3,670,217.00 and $7,378,095.00, respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The School District maintains commercial insurance coverage for
property, liability, and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the
Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The School District has elected to fund its
New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method".
Under this plan, the School District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund
for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The School District
is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State.

The following is a summary of School District contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits
paid and the ending balance of the School District's expendable trust fund for the current and previous
two fiscal years:

Fiscal Year Amount Ending
Ended June 30, Contributions (1) Reimbursed Balance
2012 $ 510,419.47 $ 625,639.44 $ 116,368.27
2011 636,086.76 1,771,271.46 (279,945.58)
2010 372,390.77 484,124.81 1,043,244.92

(1) Contributions include School District contributions, interest earned and employee salary deductions.

Insurance Pool - The School District is a member of the New Jersey School Boards Association
Insurance Group (NJSBAIG). NJSBAIG provides its members with the following coverage: General
Liability, Boiler & Machinery, Errors & Omissions, Worker's Compensation, Umbrella Liability, WC Self-
Funded Accounts, Automobile Liability, Public Official Bonds, Property Damage, Crime, Discounted
Appraisal Services, and WC Group Accounts.

The Group provides the School District with the following coverage:

Comprehensive General Liability
Automobile Liability and Physical Damage

The Group publishes its own financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which can be
obtained at www.njsbaig.org.
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Note 12: DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The School District offers its employees a choice of six deferred compensation plans created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Sections 403(b) and 457. The plans, which are administered
by the entities listed below, permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

Met Life VALIC

Midland Met Life/SmithBarney

Equitable Association Lincoln Investment Planning, Inc.
Siracusa Benefits NY Life

Note 13: COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The School District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed
by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for
Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already
rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee
is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

All full-time School District employees are entitled to thirteen paid sick leave days per fiscal school year.
Unused sick leave may be accumulated and carried forward to the subsequent years. School District
employees are entitled to two personal days that, in most instances, may be carried forward to
subsequent years’ accumulated sick leave. Vacation days not used during the year may not be
accumulated and carried forward. Benefits paid in any future year will be calculated according to
formulas outlined in the Districts' agreements with the various employee unions and included in the
current years' budget.

The liability for vested compensated absences is recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to
employees. As of June 30, 2012, the liability for compensated absences in the governmental activities
was $5,817,541.00.

Note 14:INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The following interfund balances were recorded on the various balance sheets as June 30, 2012:

Interfunds Interfunds
Fund Receivable Payable
General $ 15,810,198.53 $ 753,095.60
Special Revenue 14,374,604.69
Capital Projects 1,088,479.26
Proprietary 885,554.30 3,591.02
Fiduciary 3,767.52 479,749.78

$ 16,699,520.35 $ 16,699,520.35

The interfund receivables and payables above predominately resulted from payments made by certain
funds on behalf of other funds and from cancelation of unexpended capital projects balances. During
the fiscal year 2013, the District expects to liquidate such interfunds, depending upon the availability of
cash flow.
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Note 15:RESTATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Restatements have been made, as of June 30, 2011, to net assets for the Business-Type Activities as
follows:

Net Assets, June 30,2011 $ 2,305,063.39
Prior Period Adjustment:
Reclassification of Capital Assets and Related
Accumulated Depreciation (231,333.21)

Net Assets, June 30,2011, Restated $2,073,730.18

Note 16: DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The School District has an unassigned deficit fund balance of $2,553,394.00 in the special revenue fund
as of June 30, 2012 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2
provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year,
school districts must record the delayed one or more June state aid payments as revenue, for budget
purposes only, in the current school budget year. The statute provides legal authority for school districts
to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB
Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry,
i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State
is recording the June state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the School District cannot
recognize the June state aid payment on the GAAP financial statements until the year the State records
the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the June state aid payments, the general and
special revenue fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the School District is facing financial
difficulties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unassigned general fund balance that is reported as a
direct result from a delay in the June payments of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not
considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The School
District deficit in the GAAP funds statements of $2,553,394.00 is equal to the delayed June state aid
payments.

Note 17: FUND BALANCES

RESTRICTED

As stated in note 1, the restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to
specific purposes. Such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources by either of the
following: (1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Specific
restrictions of the School District's fund balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund -

For Excess Surplus - In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A.7F-7, as amended, the designation of
restricted fund balance - excess surplus is the result of a required calculation pursuant to the New
Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New
Jersey school districts are required to reserve general fund balance at the fiscal year end of June
30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent years’ budget. The current year excess fund balance at June 30, 2012 is
$28,788,448.09 presented on the budgetary basis of accounting (Exhibit C-1). Additionally,
$18,613,884 of excess fund balance generated during 2010-2011 has been restricted and
designated for utilization in the 2012-2013 budget.
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Note 17: FUND BALANCES (CONT’D)

RESTRICTED (CONT’D)

General Fund (Cont’d) -

For Capital Reserve Account - As of June 30, 2012, the balance in the capital reserve account

is $899,660.62. These funds are restricted for future capital outlay expenditures for capital
projects in the School District's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP).

For Maintenance Reserve Account - As of June 30, 2012, the balance in the maintenance
reserve account is $2,717,000.00. These funds are restricted for the required maintenance of
school facilities in accordance with the Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Act
(EFCFA) (N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-9) as amended by P.L. 2004, ¢. 73 (S1701).

For Emergency Reserve - As of June 30, 2012, the balance in the emergency reserve is
$1,000,000.00. These funds are restricted for the purpose of financing unanticipated general
fund expenditures required for a thorough and efficient education in accordance with N.J.S.A.
18A:7F-41c(1).

Capital Projects Fund — The District has a number of capital projects that have been approved for
construction by the New Jersey Economic Development Authority through its Additional State School
Building Aid program. There are two types of projects; one where the State manages the
construction and subsequently transfers title to the District; the other where the District receives a
grant, manages the project and gets reimbursed for expenses made by the District. As of June 30,
2012, the restricted fund balance amount is $13,984,564.42.

ASSIGNED

As stated in note 1, the assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by
the School District's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed.
Specific assignments of the School District's fund balance are summarized as follows:

General Fund -

For Subsequent Year's Expenditures - The School District has appropriated and included as
an anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 $7,162,971.00 of general fund
balance at June 30, 2012.

Other Purposes - As of June 30, 2012, the School District has $3,324,596.89 of encumbrances
outstanding for purchase orders and contracts signed by the School District, but not completed,
as of the close of the fiscal year.
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UNASSIGNED

As stated in note 1, the unassigned fund balance classification represents fund balance that has not
been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes. The School District's unassigned fund
balance is summarized as follows:

General Fund - As of June 30, 2012, $6,312,093.09 of general fund balance, presented on the
budgetary basis of accounting (Exhibit C-1), is unassigned.

Special Revenue Fund - As of June 30, 2012, the fund balance of the special revenue fund was a
deficit of $2,553,394.00, thus resulting in the fund balance classification of unassigned. The deficit is
a result from a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year. As stated in note 16,
since the State is recording the June state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the School
District cannot recognize the June state aid payments on the GAAP financial statements until the
year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording the June state aid
payments, the special revenue fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the School District is
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